VI

VIL.

VIIL.

X1

DELTA

TOWNSHIP

Public Meeting Room A
Delta Administration Building
7710 West Saginaw Highway

Lansing, Michigan 48917

TOWNSHIP BOARD
REGULAR MEETING
AGENDA
JULY 20, 2009
7:00 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER

OPENING CEREMONIES - Pledge of Allegiance

ROLL CALL - Members: Supervisor Ken Fletcher, Treasurer Howard Pizzo, Clerk Janice Vedder,
Trustees Jan Cunningham, Jeff Hicks, Barbara Poma, Cara

Spagnuolo

PRESENTATIONS AND PROCLAMATIONS

SET/ADJUST AGENDA

PUBLIC HEARINGS

COMMUNICATIONS

PUBLIC COMMENTS FOR ITEMS NOT ON AGENDA (maximum two minutes)

INTRODUCTION OF ORDINANCES

PASSAGE OF ORDINANCES

CONSENT AGENDA - Anyone may request item/s to be pulled from the consent agenda for discussion. If left
on the consent agenda, the items will be voted on by a roll call vote of the Board en masse. Then, the individual
item/s will be discussed and voted upon.

1. Minutes
July 6, 2009 Regular Meeting

2. Bills & Financial Transactions
$3,055,704.96



JULY 20, 2009 / TOWNSHIP BOARD AGENDA

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF DELTA Page 2 of 2
XII. ITEMS REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA FOR DISCUSSION
XI1l.  ITEMS ADDED TO AGENDA UNDER SECTION V. SET/ADJUST AGENDA
3.
4.

XIV. ITEMS OF BUSINESS

5. Proposed Ethics Policy
The Administrative/Personnel Committee recommends the Township Board adopt the proposed Ethics
Policy.

6. User Surcharge Rates

The Utility and Environmental Committee recommends the Township Board adopt the proposed
surcharge rates to be effective August 1, 2009.

7. Michigan Avenue Extension
The Transportation Committee recommends the Township Board approve the proposed full extension of
the Michigan Avenue extension project.

XV. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION ONLY
8. Licensing of Amusement Devices
A report is provided concerning the licensing of amusement devices and staff recommendation

regarding the current ordinance.

XVI. BOARD MEMBER, MANAGER, AND DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND COMMITTEE MINUTES

XVII. PUBLIC COMMENTS (maximum five minutes)
XVIIl. ADJOURNMENT

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF DELTA

JANICE VEDDER, TOWNSHIP CLERK
Phone (517) 323-8500

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services who are planning to attend Township meetings or hearings should
contact the Clerk’s Office by writing or calling in advance (323-8500) to inform them of the date of the meeting/hearing that will be
attended. Copies of minutes may be purchased or viewed in the Clerk's Office from 8 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday through
Friday.



MONDAY, JULY 6, 2009 TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES — REGULAR MEETING
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF DELTA
Page 20 of 29

Mr. Pennings said even though MSHDA strongly recommended the deadline
of July 16™, they did not state that they wouldn't accept an application after
that date.

Supervisor Fletcher said it may have been an assumption by church
representatives that if the Board decided to proceed to delete the Ordinance
prohibiting residential tax abatements, that an introduction could be placed on
the Board’s July 20" meeting and Board action taken in August.

Trustee Cunningham felt the church was still assuming that action could be
taken this evening.

Mr. Pennings said the church was present this evening to discuss the matters
the Board had raised and address the Township’s concerns.

Trustee Hicks encouraged the church to forward additional information to the
Board and that the item did not have to be placed on a Board agenda.

Trustee Poma indicated that she and Treasurer Pizzo had had an opportunity
to meet with representatives of the church and at that time, they were of the
understanding that the church would attempt to file their application by the July
16" deadline.

Mr. Pennings proceeded to address the information contained in a memo from
Township Assessing Director, Brian Thelen, regarding the proposed PILOT
request. He noted that the Township had been provided with an analysis of
costs associated with the project and the fact that the Township would receive
more revenue from the PILOT than what they would receive from a typical
development. Mr. Pennings said it was alleged that PILOT ordinances
complicated tax administration, but he felt PILOT's actually simplified tax
administration by not having to follow the usual valuation process. There was
a concern expressed that approving the PILOT project would create affordable
housing, but it may potentially take tenants away from existing housing
projects. Mr. Pennings indicated the church had provided the Board with an
analysis which indicated that there was less than a 5% vacancy rate in the
Township and that several of the vacancies occurred in the assisted living
facilities where the rental fees were high. He said if the church developed their
property adjacent to the proposed PILOT project as condominiums; the
Township could ultimately generate as much as $250,000 a year in additional
revenue. Mr. Pennings felt the Township had the ability to deny other PILOT
projects due to the policy the church had presented to the Board and the
criteria that would have to be met in order for a PILOT to be approved.

Trustee Poma said she was aware that MSHDA wanted a minimum of 35
years financing and questioned what the church had proposed.



MONDAY, JULY 6, 2009 TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES — REGULAR MEETING
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF DELTA
Page 21 of 29

Mr. Pennings felt the church had proposed 35 years as well.
Trustee Poma said she would like to see the completed MSHDA application.

Treasurer Pizzo said one of the reasons why he wanted more information on
the PILOT project was because he felt it was important to review what had
previously been reviewed by the prior Board. He felt the PILOT project was a
unique concept that focused on the need for low income housing for seniors
and it could keep them off of Medicaid and out of nursing homes longer. Mr.
Pizzo was also impressed with the fact that the church had a number of church
members who were willing to volunteer time to support the project in different
ways. He was impressed with what had been said this evening about the fact
that it would be difficult for other PILOTs to be considered by the Township
because of the stringent policies that could be put in place. He was also
concerned about the fact that this area of the Township was originally planned
for residential development, but that adjacent property owners could now be
faced with office development, whereas, the church had proposed to build
senior housing, as well as condominiums which he felt would be more
desirable. Mr. Pizzo noted that for those reasons, he felt it was reasonable for
the Board to reconsider this issue and provide the church specific reasons why
the Board would oppose the PILOT project.

Trustee Poma inquired about financing for the project.

Mike Kessler, representing Mt. Hope Church, reviewed the method of
financing that would be used for the project and he indicated that the church
had committed to a 50 year financing period in order to keep the project
affordable. He responded to the Township’s Town Center feasibility study that
was prepared in September of 2007 and a question that had been raised as to
whether the church would develop a condominium development after the
senior facility was completed. Mr. Kessler noted that the condominiums may
not be developed right away, but as condominium units were built, they could
be rented first and then sold as the housing market improved. Mr. Kessler
indicated that once the church property was developed, the Township could
generate approximately $250,000 of revenue. Mr. Kessler felt now was the
time to take advantage of the stimulus monies that were being offered. He felt
this was the perfect time to approve this type of development due to the
following: It would stimulate the economy, there was a need for senior
housing within the Township and he referred to a study done in 2005 which
showed the need for 65 units and that a later study prepared in 2008 showed a
need for 120 units, the Township would experience a 24% increase of seniors
by the year 2013, MSHDA funding deadlines, and the success other
communities had experienced with PILOT projects. He reiterated the fact that
the Township could adopt a policy that would limit the number of PILOT
requests proposed.



MONDAY, JULY 6, 2009 TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES — REGULAR MEETING
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF DELTA
Page 22 of 29

Treasurer Pizzo asked Mr. Kessler to address the uniqueness of this project
and why it was different from other developments.

Mr. Kessler said the PILOT was unique for Delta Township because he didn’t
know of many non-profit organizations that were willing to support senior
citizens, donate their property, and provide volunteers and the resources to
assist senior citizens who were in need.

Supervisor Fletcher questioned whether the church would be willing to
consider any of the options the Township Assessor had put forth. Mr. Fletcher
acknowledged the budget problems Eaton County was experiencing and he
had concerns with approving something that would only benefit Delta
Township and not the surrounding communities.

Mr. Kessler said the seniors monthly rents would be increased by $77 if Eaton
County was paid their regular amount of taxes. He felt the figures the
Township’s Assessor had put forth were low when showing the differential and
that the numbers didn’t represent senior facilities. He said if a senior citizen
could afford to live in an affordable living unit but one was not available, they
would be forced to look into an assisted living facility where the rent was very
expensive. He said if they couldn’t afford an assisted living facility, they would
have to rely on Medicaid or live in a nursing home which was a major expense
for the State. He said what the church was proposing was a grass roots effort
to assist senior citizens, but if their rents made it unaffordable for many
seniors, they would have to check into an assisted living facility they couldn’t
afford, or be placed in a nursing home. Mr. Kessler said due to the fact that
the rents would be low, the church expected that many of the people moving
into the facility would not have many assets. He noted that there were several
large senior communities that had been developed in such a way where
buyers actually purchased a home at a discount and used the sale of their
existing home as a down payment. However, he said this is not what the
church was proposing and that the proposed senior project consisted of rental
homes.

Mr. Pennings said the draft PILOT the church had submitted to the Board
required the sponsor to be a 501(C)(3) non-profit entity and the development
ownership must be affiliated with a provider of health care services in order to
reduce the costs to the Township of providing emergency services. Mr.
Pennings felt there were other facilities around the country such as a hospital
that became involved in senior facilities that were not necessarily affiliated with
a church. Mr. Pennings said there would not be many entities in the Township
that could meet the proposed PILOT criteria.

Supervisor Fletcher asked if any Board members had additional questions.
When the Board was given a presentation on the PILOT project in April, he did



MONDAY, JULY 6, 2009 TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES — REGULAR MEETING
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF DELTA
Page 23 of 29

not hear that there was any support to go forward. He noted that the church
had requested that the PILOT be placed on this evening’s agenda so that they
could address concerns the Board had expressed. Mr. Fletcher questioned
whether the Board wanted the Township Manager to discuss this further with
church representatives or did the Board not want to move forward at this time.

Trustee Poma said she was interested in looking at further dialogue with the
acknowledgement that moving forward and looking at a 10% payment as
opposed to the proposed 4%. She was aware of other variables that were
involved, but she felt the Board still needed to see the contract so that
decisions could be made. Ms. Poma felt the concept was very interesting and
she felt it was important that the Township served the senior community, but
she didn’'t want to hurt Eaton County by approving a PILOT.

Trustee Cunningham noted that before the PILOT came back before the Board
for further discussion, she wanted to request a meeting with the Township’s
attorney.

Trustee Hicks said he didn’t have anything additional to add at this time.

Trustee Cunningham said her position on this issue had not changed.
However, she noted that if the Board wanted to continue to have further
discussion on this issue, she wanted to make sure the Board met with the
Township’s Attorney.

Trustee Hicks said he appreciated the fact that Treasurer Pizzo wanted further
discussion on the PILOT, but there did not seem to be adequate support to
move forward on this issue. He said in deference to Supervisor Fletcher’'s
comment about at what point the Board says they are done discussing this, he
felt it was important to realize that the reason he had asked the question about
the timeline was due to the fact that nothing would happen before MSHDA'’s
deadline of July 16th.

Treasurer Pizzo said he agreed with Trustee Poma, but he felt it was a reality
that there was a need and he felt there were statistics the church was
attempting to prove. He felt everyone would recognize that there were a
number of seniors in need and he felt there would be a number of other
requests over the next few years. Mr. Pizzo said while it was fresh in the
Board’s minds, he felt the Board should instruct the Township Manager to look
into this issue and also have him review other PILOTs that existed in the
county and what their impacts had been.

Supervisor Fletcher asked if it was the consensus of the Board that the
Township Manager have further discussions with church representatives.



MONDAY, JULY 6, 2009 TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES — REGULAR MEETING
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF DELTA
Page 24 of 29

18.

Trustee Cunningham said she didn't agree with using the Township’s
resources to further explore PILOTs at the present time. She felt the church
would provide the Board with information and as it moved along, the Board
could take a look at it. She appreciated how Treasurer Pizzo felt, but she
didn’'t feel the Board should be committing the resources of the Township
Manager at this time.

Supervisor Fletcher asked what the process was to move forward.

Trustee Hicks said he hadn’'t heard any consensus one way or the other. He
said it didn’t preclude individual Board members or the church from providing
additional information.

Trustee Poma said she wanted to review the completed grant application
before any questions could be answered.

Trustee Spagnuolo felt the Board should review a completed document.

It was requested that Mt. Hope Church forward information to the Board as it
became available.

Construction of 2009 Sidewalk Projects — The Engineering Department
recommends the Township Board consider awarding a contract for the
construction of sidewalks.

Township Engineer, Dennis Williams provided the Board with the Township’s
2009 sidewalk construction projects.

Trustee Hicks inquired about the concerns that had been expressed about the
sidewalks on Alan Lane.

Mr. Williams said the Township had a five year sidewalk plan that prioritized
sidewalks throughout the Township. He said there were two different issues
that could change the priority ranking of a project, the first being the
opportunity for grants, and the second being road construction projects. Mr.
Williams indicated that if the Township couldn’t obtain the necessary
easements for a particular sidewalk within a budgeted year, the Township
continued with negotiations with the property owner in hopes that the sidewalk
could be built the following year.

Treasurer Pizzo said there were concerns expressed by residents about
flooding on St. Joe Highway. He questioned whether the installation of
sidewalks would cause more problems.



MONDAY, JULY 6, 2009 TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES — REGULAR MEETING
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF DELTA
Page 25 of 29

Mr. Williams indicated that property owners on the south side of St. Joe
Highway had expressed concerns regarding the inability of the storm drain to
handle flooding. Mr. Williams said he had walked the site and found that a
catch basin was full of debris which he had removed. Mr. Williams had also
visited the site after the area experienced heavy rains and found that the catch
basin was working and that there was no flooding. He indicated that a culvert
would be installed under the sidewalk so that any surface water would be
transferred to the north side of the sidewalk and directed into the catch basin.

Mitch Wood, 5909 Bradford Lane, felt sidewalks were warranted along roads
such as Creyts Road. He noted the Willowbrook Subdivision had a rural
feeling which was a draw for people purchasing homes in the neighborhood.
He felt sidewalks would change the character of the subdivision. Mr. Wood
said the residents were not opposed to sidewalks where they were needed.

Mike Sturley, 1744 Willowbrook, said he was also opposed to sidewalks in his
neighborhood. Mr. Sturley said the Township’s original sidewalk plan was
adopted in 1986 and in 2005. The Township had also recently adopted a Non-
Motorized Transportation Plan. He noted that if sidewalks were installed within
the Willowbrook subdivision, it would divert money from other sidewalk
projects within the Township that were more beneficial. He said the 1986
sidewalk plan had numerous references to sidewalks providing routes between
major city areas such as parks, schools, and shopping. The plan also
recommended that sidewalks be installed along major transportation routes
and that there be a continuation of primary sidewalk routes. Mr. Sturley didn’t
feel the Willowbrook sidewalk project met any of those criteria. He noted that
the Township’s Non-Motorized Transportation Plan also recommended that
public hearings be held prior to implementation of individual projects, but no
public hearings were held for the Willowbrook residents.

Mr. Sturley noted the Township’s Non-Motorized Transportation Plan
recommended access to the Lansing Mall, but area subdivisions didn't have
internal sidewalks that lead to any of the area parks or schools. He noted that
the Non-Motorized plan also recommended that a sidewalk system be in place
in order to reduce the need for bussing. Mr. Sturley felt it was important that
property owners be made aware of the fact that they would be responsible to
maintain the sidewalk in front of their home and snow removal. Mr. Sturley
said he supported the Township’s plan to provide sidewalks, but in his opinion,
the Willowbrook sidewalk project did not meet the intent of the sidewalk plan
the Township had adopted.

Richard McKinley, 1807 Willowbrook Drive, said he was opposed to sidewalks
in his neighborhood. He noted that he had over 200 feet of frontage that he
would have to clear of snow in the winter. Mr. McKinley said he had spoken to
Dick Cross of the Township’s Engineering Department who had indicated that



MONDAY, JULY 6, 2009 TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES — REGULAR MEETING
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF DELTA
Page 26 of 29

19.

eventually, the Township wanted to install sidewalks on both sides of the street
which he felt would cause a hardship for several of the older residents in the
neighborhood. He said the residents felt there were other areas in the
Township where there was a need for sidewalks. He noted that several trees
and landscaping would have to be removed as a result of the sidewalk project.

Bobbie Leisman, 1814 Willowbrook, reminded the Board of the Township’'s
commitment to install sidewalks where they were needed to keep school
children safe after a Waverly student was hit by a vehicle and killed while she
was crossing St. Joe Highway.

Ed Winkler, 5908 Bradford Lane, said he was one of the retirees who lived in
the subdivision and he expressed concern with having to clear snow from a
sidewalk, as well as his driveway. He noted that he and several of his
neighbors had raised their families in the neighborhood and did not need
sidewalks to ride their bikes because the subdivision did not experience a lot
of traffic. Mr. Winkler said he would rather see sidewalks installed in areas
where they were needed.

Jo Ann Hubbard, 6038 Bradford, said the existing sidewalks south of the
Willowbrook subdivision were in need of repair. She noted that her 80 year old
mother recently fell on the sidewalk because the concrete had buckled and
she questioned who was responsible to repair the sidewalks.

Supervisor Fletcher indicated that the Township made repairs to the
sidewalks.

Ms. Hubbard noted that she used a sidewalk within the Township that
continually flooded when it rained so it was always in need of repair. She
guestioned why sidewalks had to be installed during these hard economic
times.

The general consensus of the Board was to proceed with the construction of
the 2009 sidewalk projects with the potential omission of the Willowbrook
sidewalk project. Discussion also took place regarding a review of the
Township’s Sidewalk Plan.

Proposed Ethics Policy — The Administrative/Personnel Committee
recommends the Township Board consider the revised draft of the proposed
Ethics Policy for referral to the July 20, 2009 regular Board meeting for
approval.

Trustee Poma questioned the exemption of election workers under
“Employment of Relatives” contained in the Township’s Ethics Policy.



MONDAY, JULY 6, 2009 TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES — REGULAR MEETING
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF DELTA
Page 27 of 29

20.

Supervisor Fletcher deferred discussion on this issue until Clerk Vedder could
be present.

Treasurer Pizzo felt the proposed amendments to the Ethics Policy put a firm
policy in place for the Township.

Trustee Hicks referred to a clause under “Offer or Acceptance of Gifts or
Favors” where it stated that public servants may exceed the $100.00 limit as
long as they seek prior approval from the Township Manager. However, he
felt additional consideration should be given to the issue of who would the
Township Manager or the Township Board seek approval from.

Supervisor Fletcher felt this policy served as a check and balance system for
Township representatives attending various functions.

Township Board Compensation Discussion — The Administrative/Personnel
Committee recommends the Township Board consider recommendations
regarding changes to the compensation for elected officials.

Supervisor Fletcher noted this issue arose from discussion the
Administrative/Personnel Committee had regarding employee pay raises and
concerns with the economy and tight budgets. It had been suggested that by
the Township Board accepting a reduction in pay, it would show that the Board
was willing to take the first step towards reducing the Township’s budget. He
noted a 10% pay reduction had been recommended for non-fulltime Board
members and the elimination of retirement benefits. Supervisor Fletcher
indicated that the recommendation was not unanimously agreed upon which
was why this item was placed on this evening’s agenda for discussion.

Treasurer Pizzo said before the Township started their 2010 budget process,
he felt the Board needed to show that they were aware of the fact that the
community was also facing reduced budgets and that the Board needed to set
an example by making reductions in their benefits.

Trustee Hicks said in the past two years, the Board had forgone a 2.8%
increase in 2007 and a 3% increase in 2008. He felt the cuts Treasurer Pizzo
had recommended were negligible. He didn't feel that there would be any
claims that this Board was over paid for the amount of work they put in. Mr.
Hicks noted that while he didn’t run for Township Trustee with the idea that the
salary would make a difference in his life, he also didn't feel the salary was
exuberant. Mr. Hicks said his position would be different if the Board was
asking the employees to make concessions, but the Board just passed a 2%
salary increase across the board for all employees. From a budgetary and
numbers standpoint, he felt a 10% decrease was negligible in the Township’s
overall budget



MONDAY, JULY 6, 2009 TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES — REGULAR MEETING
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF DELTA
Page 28 of 29

Trustee Spagnuolo agreed with Mr. Hick’'s position. She felt it would be
different if the Board was asking the employees to make concessions. Ms.
Spagnuolo felt the Board worked hard and she didn’t feel the Board was over
paid for what they did.

Trustee Poma echoed the sentiments of her fellow Board members. She
didn't feel a 10% reduction would make much difference in the Township’s
overall budget.

Trustee Cunningham said there were many years where there was no
increase in the Board’s salary, but when the Township conducted a salary
study, it was found that Delta Township’s salaries were low and adjustments
were made. She reiterated the fact that the Board didn’t accept a cost of living
increase in 2007 or 2008 which she felt illustrated a willingness on the Board’s
part to salary increases. Ms. Cunningham said she wasn’t in favor of the 10%
decrease.

21. Surcharge Rates and Local Limits — The Utility and Environmental
Committee recommends the Township Board consider recommendations
regarding an increase to the surcharge rates.

Trustee Spagnuolo said this item was brought to the Committee’s attention at
their June meeting when Tom Morrissey of the Utility Department provided a
study of surcharge rates. She noted the driving force behind this issue was
the increased cost of ferric chloride which used to be a by-product of the steel
industry. Ms. Spagnuolo indicated that General Motors had moved to pay for
surcharge rather than treat themselves which left the Township with the
burden of increased costs.

Tom Morrissey, Utilities Director, said the current rate that was passed in
November, 2005 was approximately $1.53 and due to the cost of the ferric
chloride which was the chemical that needed to be added to neutralize the
phosphates had more than doubled in the past three years. He said it used to
be a by-product of the steel industry, but now ferric chloride had to be
manufactured for the wastewater industry which was the reason for the
increase in COSts.

XVI. BOARD MEMBER, MANAGER, AND DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND COMMITTEE
MINUTES

22.  Administrative/Personnel Committee Minutes — June 3, 2009
XVIl. PUBLIC COMMENTS (maximum five minutes) —

Dave Arking, 223 Williamsburg Road, said in light of new information that had become



MONDAY, JULY 6, 2009 TOWNSHIP BOARD MINUTES — REGULAR MEETING

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF DELTA

Page 29 of 29
available regarding the extension of Michigan Avenue, he questioned whether the
Transportation Committee would agree to revisit this issue with the citizens group before
it came back before the Board.
Trustee Poma said she would be researching the information that had been provided by
the Road Commission regarding the amount of road right-of-way needed for the half
mile extension of Michigan Avenue.

XVIl. ADJOURNMENT
TRUSTEE CUNNINGHAM MOVED THE MEETING ADJOURN AT 9:40 P.M.

TRUSTEE HICKS SUPPORTED THE MOTION. MOTION PASSED 6 TO 0.

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF DELTA

HOWARD PIZZO, TREASURER AND ACTING CLERK

JANICE VEDDER, TOWNSHIP CLERK

KENNETH FLETCHER, TOWNSHIP SUPERVISOR

Minutes prepared by Anne Swink
M:\Board Meetings\BD\MIN\2009\July6 Reg Mtg Minutes
Minutes Approved:



